1992

Jeanette Crawford Osguthorpe v. Jerry Silver Osguthorpe : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF COURT

Jurisdiction of this matter is conferred by Section
78-2a-3(2)(i).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED

1. Were the federal and state constitutional rights of Defendant violated by finding Defendant guilty of criminal contempt without (a) providing him proper notice of the charges against him and penalties he was facing; (b) advising him as to his right of assistance of counsel and appointment if he was indigent; (c) advising him of his right to remain silent, (d) conducting an evidentiary hearing where he could confront witnesses and to offer testimony on his own behalf, and (e) giving him other rights that are inherent in all criminal proceedings? This issue presents a question of law. State v. Gonzales, 822 P.2d 1214 (Utah App. 1991). As such, no particular deference to a trial court's decision is required. Carpet Barn v. State, 786 P.2d 770 (Utah App. 1990).

2. As to civil contempt, were Appellant's federal and state constitutional rights violated in the proceeding below when the lower court failed to conduct an inquiry as to whether Appellant was indigent and if so failed to appoint counsel to represent him? This issue presents a question of law. State v. Gonzales, 822 P.2d 1214 (Utah App. 1991).

3. Since no evidentiary hearing was conducted, was there any evidence before the lower court to show beyond a reasonable doubt that the appellant had the ability to comply with the court's order and willfully failed to do so, thereby justifying criminal contempt? Was there any evidence before the lower court to show by clear and convincing evidence that the appellant had the present ability to purge himself of civil contempt and imprisonment by being able to make the required support payments? Jense v. Jense, 784 P.2d 1249 (Utah App. 1989).

4. Did the lower court enter Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law which are legally sufficient to impose criminal and civil contempt of court? This is a question of law for the court to decide de novo. State v. Gonzales, 822 P.2d 1214 (Utah App. 1991). Carpet Barn v. State, 786 P.2d 770 (Utah App. 1990), Von Hake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162 (Utah 1988).

5. Did the lower court violate Article 1, Section 16 of the Utah Constitution by imposing a jail sentence against Defendant amounting to imprisonment for debt? This is a question of law to be reviewed by the Court de novo. State v. Gonzales, 822 P.2d 1214 (Utah App. 1991). Carpet Barn v. State, 786 P.2d 770 (Utah App. 1990).

7. Did the lower court err in awarding attorneys' fee to

the plaintiff for litigation occurring before the Utah Supreme Court and United States Federal District Court when neither court specifically awarded such fees? §30-3-3, U.C.A.; Riche v. Riche, 784 P.2d 465 (Utah App. 1989); State v. Gonzales, 822 P.2d 1214 (Utah App. 1991). Carpet Barn v. State, 786 P.2d 770 (Utah App. 1990).

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTES

Pertinent constitutional and statutory provisions are contained in the Addendum to this Brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

This is an appeal from the order of the Honorable Judge Homer F. Wilkinson finding Defendant in contempt of court thereby causing Defendant's incarceration for thirty days in the Salt Lake County jail. It is also an appeal from the order of Judge Wilkinson upon remand awarding attorneys' fees to the plaintiff as to litigation in the Utah Supreme Court and the Federal District Court of Utah.

Course of Proceedings and Statement of Facts

Because this appeal centers around the court proceedings below, the underlying facts of this divorce action serve only as background to this appeal. References will be made to the record number of both pleadings and transcripts. For those instances where no record number is available, the date of transcript and page number will be utilized or a description of the document's location will be given. Relevant documents which are not contained in the District Court file but which are contained in the file of the Utah Supreme Court, or the United States Federal

District Court will be contained in the Addendum. Finally, all matters dealing with contempt will be underlined.

The plaintiff and defendant were married on August 26, 1974 and separated on December 26, 1987. The parties had four children during their marriage. On December 30, 1987 Jeannette Osguthorpe filed a Verified Complaint for Divorce before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson. (R. 2). During the preliminary proceedings the 1986 joint federal and state income tax forms were entered into the record. (R. 36-48). These documents showed that the adjusted gross income including wages, interest and rental income from both parties totalled \$17,371.00. (R. 34). Prior to trial the defendant filed a financial declaration under oath stating that his total monthly income as of 1988 was \$2,350.00. (R. 80-88).

During the lower court proceedings of divorce, Defendant was represented by attorney David Dolowitz. (R. 63-68). On August 16, 1988 a trial was held before the Honorable Homer Wilkinson. During the trial the 1982 through 1987 joint income tax returns of the parties were received into evidence. (R. 157). At the conclusion of the trial the court awarded custody of the children to the plaintiff subject to reasonable visitation by the defendant. The court ordered Defendant to pay \$150.00 support per month per child and \$150.00 alimony per month for a period of five years, then \$1.00 per year for the next five years. The court also made various orders concerning health insurance and personal property. (R. 159).

Fewer than four months after the divorce trial, Plaintiff filed a Verified Motion for Order to Show Cause and sought an

order of the court finding Defendant in contempt. (R. 176-180). Shortly thereafter, the attorney for defendant's attorney filed a motion for contempt against Plaintiff's attorney on the basis that he had willfully failed to prepare written Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and a Divorce Decree in accordance with the bench ruling of the lower court. (R. 215-17). In addition, Defendant requested that Plaintiff be held in contempt for failure to abide by the previous bench order of the court. (R. 218-223).

Plaintiff's counsel subsequently prepared the required documents. On February 28, 1989 a hearing was held as to the objections lodged by defense counsel concerning these documents. (R. 250). The court essentially approved the Findings as written and executed them on February 28, 1989. (R. 251-67). Likewise, the Decree of Divorce was also executed. (R. 269-77). These Findings and Decree form the basis for subsequent actions of contempt which are the issue in this appeal.

On March 1, 1989 the Domestic Commissioner executed an order ruling upon the separate motions for contempt filed by both parties. (R. 279-283). Neither party was found in contempt by the commissioner. On March 29, 1989 Defendant appealed to this Court various provisions of the divorce decree. (R. 286-87). On March 19, 1990 this Court affirmed all provisions of the divorce decree on the basis that the lower court had not abused its discretion. (R. 300-03; 131 Utah Adv. Rpt. 21; 791 P.2d 895.) This Court affirmed the lower court's decision of alimony that the defendant had the ability to earn more than his present income and had chosen to be employed by his father at a lower

salary. This Court also affirmed the lower court's finding that the federal and state tax returns appeared to understate the parties' income during the marriage. This Court stated:

"The trial court found that defendant was not being candid as to his actual current income or was purposefully under-employed. We defer to the trial court's assessment of the credibility of the witnesses....Given the evidence in the record, it was well within the court's discretion to determine that Defendant was either earning more than the evidence indicated or had the ability to earn more money. 131 Utah Adv. Rpt. at 23.

Subsequently, on a petition for rehearing this Court awarded attorneys' fees and costs on appeal. This Court found, "Because those findings [of the lower court in the divorce action] are supported by the evidence we award Plaintiff her costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred on appeal and remand to the trial court for a determination of reasonable attorneys' fees Plaintiff has incurred on appeal." (134 Utah Adv. Rpt. at 23; R. 299).

On October 17, 1990 Plaintiff filed a "Verified Motion for Judgment, Enforcement of Decree of Divorce, Determination of Attorneys' Fee on Appeal, Contempt Order and Sanctions and Other Relief." (R. 305-12).

During all of these preceding events Defendant was still being represented by attorney David S. Dolowitz. On October 17, 1990 Mr. Dolowitz filed a Withdrawal of Counsel. (R. 377). Concurrently, he also filed a Notice of Attorneys' Lien. (R. 375-76). On November 1, 1990 Plaintiff's attorney sent to Defendant a "Notice to Appoint Successor Counsel." (R. 381).

On November 20, 1990 a hearing was held before the Honorable Sandra Peuler, Domestic Relations Commissioner. Plaintiff was

represented by attorney Kent Kasting and Defendant appeared pro se. (R. 402). At that time Plaintiff was awarded a judgment of \$22,538.00 consisting of delinquent child support, alimony, attorneys' fees, and costs of appeal. The commissioner certified to the judge the issue of Defendant's contempt and ordered an evidentiary hearing be set unless Defendant brought himself current through November prior to the evidentiary hearing. (R. 402).

Defendant filed a pro se objection to the commissioner's recommendation claiming that he had insufficient income to pay the continuing obligation ordered by the court and had no assets available to pay the \$22,000 amount required for the purging of contempt. (R. 404-08). He attached copies of his 1988 federal income tax return to his objection. (R. 410-26). This document, the federal tax return, showed an adjusted gross income of \$11,933.00.

On January 3, 1991 Commissioner Peuler affirmed her previous decision and executed an order to that effect. (R. 436-441). On January 25, 1991 the Court considered the objection to the Domestic Commissioner's recommendation. The Court made various orders regarding visitation, support, and personal property and in addition "reserved for an evidentiary hearing plaintiff's request for a finding of contempt, imposition of fine, sanctions, and jail sentence with plaintiff being allowed to schedule such a hearing in the future if she so desires." (R. 442; 449-55). (Emphasis added).

On September 26, 1991 a new "Verified Motion for Judgment, Contempt Order and Sanctions and Other Relief" was filed by

Plaintiff's attorney. (R. 466-71). In part, Plaintiff's pleading stated:

Defendant's attitude of contempt for the orders of this Court throughout the history of this case, and since the November 1990 hearing, is blatant and shameless. Plaintiff requests the Court impose appropriate sanctions against Defendant, including but not limited to sentencing him to an appropriate term in the county jail for his contemptuous behavior. (R. 470-71). (Emphasis added).

On October 8, 1991 the motion of Plaintiff was heard. Again, plaintiff was represented by her attorney Kent Kasting and the defendant appeared pro se. The Commissioner recommended an award of an additional \$6,750 for a period of December 1990 through September 1991 of unpaid child support and alimony as well as recommending an evidentiary hearing as to the issue of contempt. (R. 484; 485-87).

On October 18, 1991 Defendant filed objections to the domestic commissioner's recommendations. (R. 492-538). Included in the exhibits attached by Defendant was his 1990 federal and state income tax returns. (R. 526-35). The 1990 federal return showed an adjusted gross income of \$11,167.00.

On January 7, 1992 a hearing was held before the Honorable Homer Wilkinson concerning the matters previously raised by Plaintiff. Because this hearing and its subsequent orders are relevant to this appeal the hearing and orders will be discussed in some detail.

On January 7, 1992 Plaintiff appeared in person and with her attorney, Kent Kasting. Defendant appeared in person pro se. Prior to any evidence being taken a discussion occurred between the court, Defendant, and Plaintiff's counsel. (R. 647-58). At no time during this preliminary procedure was Defendant advised

of any criminal rights he may have or as to his right to have an attorney appointed if he could not afford one.

During the hearing Plaintiff, Defendant, Plaintiff's attorney, Defendant's present wife, and Plaintiff's brother all testified. (R. 698-828). Defendant testified that he had insufficient financial income to keep current on his support and alimony obligation. (R. 757, 762-63, 778). Defendant's 1989 and 1990 income tax returns were offered and received into evidence. (R. 785, Exs. 15 and 16). Defendant's new wife, Gwenda, also testified that her husband did not have sufficient income to meet the current support obligation. (R. 793). She stated, in addition, that the defendant was representing himself because they were unable to afford the services of an attorney. (R. 795). Defendant testified that he had insufficient income to pay for the past services of his own attorney Mr. Dolowitz and that a lien had been filed against him. In addition, he had insufficient income to pay the attorneys' fees for plaintiff. (R. 765-66).

At the conclusion of the hearing the lower court made the following statement in rendering its opinion. This statement is quoted in its entirety because of its relevance to this appeal.

The Court would also find that the defendant is in contempt of this court pursuant to Section 78-32-1(5), "disobedience of any lawful judgment, order or process of the court." The Court would further find that the defendant has had an opportunity to have a hearing here in the courtroom, that evidence has been taken regarding the contempt, that his credibility is in question, he has not answered the questions put to him truthfully, that the only evidence the court has to go on is that no child support has been paid since February of 1991 and that time only

Well, you take the \$375 that was paid, and of course none was paid in January, and going back to where he hadn't paid full child support back I guess to almost the time of the divorce, it looks like back in March of 1989, that there is an amount of child support--and this would have to be determined accurately--but its up in the amount of \$16,000.

Now I'm not talking about alimony or attorneys' fees, I'm looking only at child support, and that he's had the means to pay this child support and that he's had a good education, he has the ability to, if he does not have the income--and the Court even questions that--that he is paying for rent in an excessive amount instead of paying his child support.

The Court finds that this is one of the most flagrant violations of the law as far as support of children that has come before this Court, and as I say, I cannot even comprehend how a father can allow himself to do such a thing and still claim he loves his children and wants to visit the children.

The Court would order, pursuant to Section 78-32-10--and of course I've indicated he has been found in contempt--that he be fined \$200 and that he be ordered to spend 30 days in the Salt Lake County jail.

The Court would further order, pursuant to Section 78-32-12 that the imprisonment is for his omission to perform an act enjoined by law, which he is yet in the power to pay, and that after serving the 30 days, he is to continue to serve the time in jail until he pays the child support as ordered by the court.

* * *

The Court would further order that the prison--or, the jail sentence be stayed for a period of six days or until the 13th day of January, 1992, that if the defendant, by that time, has paid the sum of \$5,000 to the plaintiff for child support, then the sentence will be stayed and each month thereafter that he pays child support as ordered by the court, plus the sum of \$300 towards the arrearage--or for an amount of \$900--then the jail term will be stayed.

If he fails to pay the \$5,000 by the 13th day of January, 1992 then he is to report to the Salt Lake County jail at 12:00 noon. If he does not report, a bench warrant will be issued for his arrest.

* * *

The alimony would have to be paid, too; I'm just not ordering that that be paid as far as the jail. He's

in contempt of this Court as far as alimony and as far as the obligation of attorneys' fees and all the orders of this Court; and that should be noted for the record.

But I am purging him of the contempt if he's paid the child support and gets the child support going, and what you do as far as the collection of alimony, I'll have to leave that to you. [Directed to Mr. Kasting]. (Transcript of January 7, 1992 entitled "Reporter's Partial Transcript of Hearing on Commissioner's Recommendation "Court's Ruling", pp. 9-13). (Emphasis added).

The oral order of the court was reduced to a judgment on January 24, 1992. (R. 549-53). In addition, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were also entered by the lower court. (R. 555-63).

In order to bring his support obligation more current and to avoid a charge of contempt, Defendant and his current wife applied for and received a loan from Valley Bank & Trust in the amount of \$5,000 and paid this to the plaintiff before January 13, 1992. Defendant then filed on February 21, 1992 a "Motion to Reconsider Judgment" on the basis that he did not have the income to pay the \$900 a month imposed by the court and that now he was required to pay installment amounts on the \$5,000 loan. (R. 565). The Motion to Reconsider Judgment was denied by the court on April 3, 1992. (R. 586).

Three months later on April 30, 1992 Plaintiff filed a new "Verified Motion for Judgment, Attorneys' Fee and Immediate Imposition of Jail Sentence." Plaintiff requested the immediate imposition of the thirty day jail sentence previously stayed by the court together with additional judgments for unpaid support and attorneys' fees. Plaintiff requested the following:

Defendant has again willfully and intentionally violated the previous orders of this Court and, therefore, is once again in blatant contempt of this

Court's previous orders and it is reasonable that he should be ordered to immediately commence serving the entire thirty-day jail sentence which the Court had earlier imposed upon him but stayed conditioned upon his complying with the payments the court required him to make to the plaintiff and the court should issue a bench warrant requiring the defendant to commence serving that jail sentence forthwith. (R. 590-91). (Emphasis added).

On May 7, 1992 a Notice of Hearing of this Motion was filed.

It stated the following:

Please take notice that Plaintiff's Verified Motion for Judgment, Attorneys' Fees and Immediate Imposition of Jail Sentence will come on for hearing on the 18th day of May, 1992 at 9:00 a.m. before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson, Judge of the above-entitled court. (R. 593). (Emphasis added).

On May 18, 1992 Plaintiff's motion came before the lower court. Plaintiff was now represented by her new attorney, Sharon A. Donovan. Defendant once again appeared pro se. No attempt was made to conduct an evidentiary hearing. No effort was made to advise Defendant of any criminal rights nor was inquiry made concerning his financial status to hire an attorney. Concerning the appellant's ability to pay, Plaintiff's counsel made the following statement:

He clearly has the ability to pay child support. I'm sure the court is aware of the Osguthorpe farm up in Park City, which part of it has been condemned in the newspaper recently, and they indicated that they received about \$600,000--at least the family has--for the widening of the road into Park City and other property which is worth a couple of million dollars up there with the family properties. (R. 635).

In another portion of the hearing, Plaintiff's counsel stated:

And if Dr. Osguthorpe is only making \$5.00 an hour, which I highly doubt given the amount of education he's had, given his family background, they own the veterinary clinic, they own property, he says he doesn't have an interest in it. (R. 643).

Defendant informed the court that he had no interest in the

Osguthorpe family farm nor the income of his father. (R. 639). Moreover, he again asserted that his income as shown by his income tax returns was insufficient to pay the current amount of child support and alimony together with the past amount for arrearages. Defendant offered his 1991 tax returns to substantiate this claim. (R. 638, Ex. 2).

Defendant then made the following statement:

I'm doing the best I can with the income I have. I have no other source from which to draw and I wish I did. I wish I did have the income. But veterinary medicine is tough right now. It's going through tough economic times right now. I wish I could make more to bring this situation current, Your Honor. I've checked on other jobs in this area, and there are none available at this time, Your Honor. (R. 640).

At the conclusion of the hearing, the following dialogue occurred:

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