1992

Jeanette Crawford Osguthorpe v. Jerry Silver Osguthorpe : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

It was from these findings that the trial court entered its Order of January 24, 1992, sentencing the Defendant to jail, but also staying that jail sentence provided Dr. Osguthorpe pay certain sums towards the arrearages. (R-552.) The court also gave Dr. Osguthorpe the opportunity to purge himself of this contempt by paying the sums required. (R-553.)

Dr. Osguthorpe never appealed the January 24th Findings,

Conclusion and Order. On that basis alone he is precluded from claiming any error in connection with that Order in this appeal. (See Rule 4(a) Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.)

After the hearing, Dr. Osguthorpe not only failed to make the required monthly payments on the arrearage, but also again did not make his full regular child support and alimony payment. He paid only \$1,500.00 on a \$3,000.00 obligation between February and May of 1992. Because of his failure to make the payments on the arrearages as required by the January 24th Order, and his failure to make ongoing support payments, Mrs. Osguthorpe filed a new Motion seeking judgment on the new arrearages and imposition of the jail sentence which was imposed under the January 24th Order, but stayed, provided Dr. Osguthorpe made the required payments.

(R-588-592, See Addendum.)

Dr. Osguthorpe was again given proper notice of this hearing and he again testified, by way of proffer, and again introduced documentary evidence. (Transcript May 18, 1992, hearing, Vol. I.) During this hearing he admitted he had not paid the amounts required in order to stay the earlier imposed jail sentence, (Id. p. 6.) and admitted he had not paid all of his regular ongoing child support and alimony payments. (Id. p.7.)

At the conclusion of this second hearing, the Court imposed the jail sentence which had been stayed in January and gave Dr. Osguthorpe yet another chance to avoid the jail sentence by including in its Order:

However the Court will stay its imposition of jail sentence, as long as the following conditions are met: (a) the Court shall stay this Order until June 24, 1992, at 12:00 noon, at which time \$4,050.00 shall be paid by Defendant to Plaintiff to bring the delinquent child support and alimony through June 1992, (\$1,800.00 in child support through June 1992, and alimony of \$750.00 through June, 1992; and attorney's fees of \$500.00 for purpose of these proceedings). If the \$3,050.00 is not paid by June 24, 1992, at 12:00 noon, a bench warrant shall issue, unless the defendant submits himself to the Salt Lake County Jail for incarceration. (b) The Court further orders that if the on-going child support and payment on arrearages of \$900.00 per month due on the 5th day of July, 1992, is not paid at that time, a bench warrant shall issue, unless Defendant submits himself voluntarily to the Salt Lake County Jail. (R-615.)

And again Dr. Osguthorpe failed to comply. It was only after all of this did a Bench Warrant issue for Dr. Osguthorpe's arrest.

Appellant's argument pertaining to the contempt issue can be distilled into two simple questions.

- 1) Was there sufficient evidence and are the Findings sustainable in connection with the contempt citation which resulted from the January hearing?
- 2) Was Dr. Osguthorpe afforded adequate procedural due process in connection with the finding of contempt made by the trial court in January 1992?

The answer to the first question is "yes" in both respects. Throughout the history of this case, Dr. Osguthorpe, a doctor of veterinarian medicine practicing for over 15 years with his father Dr. D. A. Osguthorpe, at the Osguthorpe Veterinary Hospital, claimed he only made/makes \$1,000.00 per month. At the initial

divorce trial, the trial court found otherwise concluding that Dr. Osguthorpe either understated his income or was underemployed. On appeal, this Court affirmed that finding. Osguthorpe v. Osguthorpe, 804 P.2d 530 (Utah App. 1990). A copy of this case has been included in the Addendum to this Brief.

Since that time and continuously through the present, Dr. Osguthorpe has maintained that same position. However, simply because Dr. Osguthorpe says that's the case doesn't mean that his claim is true. In fact, in all evidentiary hearings conducted in this case, the trial court has specifically found to the contrary.

The January 7th hearing is no exception. After a full hearing, the trial court specifically found:

- 1) That he said he would pay the child support ordered if certain personal property was awarded to him;
- 2) That he had not acted in good faith in paying his ongoing child support obligations;
- 3) That he had and has the means to pay child support;
- 4) That he did not answer questions truthfully;
and
- 5) That his failure to pay his support obligations was done willfully, voluntarily and with full knowledge of those obligations. (R-557-559; Addendum to this Brief.)

This Court recently enumerated the elements necessary for a trial court to find a person in contempt in State v. Hurst, 821

P.2d 467 (Utah App. 1991), where Judge Greenwood stated:

For the court to hold Hurst in contempt for failure to comply with a court order, it had to find that she (1) knew what was required, (2) had the ability to comply and (3) intentionally failed to do so. Von Hake v. Thomas 759 P.2d 1162, 1172 (Utah 1988). These elements must be proven beyond a reasonable doubt in a criminal contempt proceeding, and by clear and convincing evidence in a civil contempt proceeding. Id. Hurst, at 471.

Even assuming that this was a criminal contempt proceeding, that burden was met not only by the language of the Findings themselves, but also by the statements of Judge Wilkinson when he issued his order from the bench at the conclusion of the January hearing.

He (Dr. Osguthorpe) just perjures himself in this courtroom . . .

He has not answered the questions truthfully . . .

The Court finds that this is one of the most flagrant violations of the law as far as support of children that has come before this court.

(Transcript January 7, 1992, hearing, Vol. III p. 9, 10; parenthetical language added.)

Judge Greenwood, in affirming the trial court's finding of contempt in the Hurst case goes on to state:

We affirm the trial court's findings and the conclusions logically flowing therefrom-if the findings are based on sufficient evidence, viewing the evidence in the light most generous to the trial court. West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co., 818 P.2d 1311,1312-14 (Utah App. 1991). We will not set aside a finding unless it is clearly erroneous. Utah R. Civ. P. 52(a). We give 'due regard' to the 'opportunity of the trial court to judge the

credibility of the witnesses.' Id. To show insufficiency of the evidence, Hurst is required to 'marshal all the evidence supporting the challenged findings and then show that despite that evidence, the findings are clearly lacking in support.' (State of Utah, in the Interest of M.S., 815 P.2d 1325, 1328 (Utah App. 1991)).

Rather than marshaling the evidence supporting the challenged findings, Hurst has restated only the evidence favorable to her position. Because she failed to marshal the evidence, we accept the challenged finding and the resulting conclusions. See Majestic Inv., at 1312-14; Turnbaugh v. Anderson, 793 P.2d 939, 44 (Utah App. 1990). Id. at 471.

In the present case, Dr. Osguthorpe has failed to marshal all of the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and then demonstrate that that evidence was insufficient. Like Ms. Hurst, he has attempted only to restate evidence which he thinks is favorable to his position. His challenge of the adequacy of the findings must fail.

Dr. Osguthorpe goes on to argue that the contempt citation in his case was criminal in nature, however a review of both the January 24th and June 19th Orders shows that this is not the case when applying the criteria for civil contempt as established by the Utah Supreme Court in Von Hake v. Thomas 759 P.2d 1162 (Utah 1988). Justice Zimmerman thoroughly and comprehensively analyzes the contempt remedy in Utah and states:

A contempt order is civil if it has a remedial purpose, either to coerce an individual to comply with a court order given for the benefit of another party or to compensate an aggrieved party for injuries resulting from the failure to comply with an order. See, e.g., Bradshaw v. Kershaw, 627 P.2d 528, 530 (Utah 1981); Shillitani v. United States, 384

U.S. 364, 368-70, 86 S.Ct. 1531, 1534-36, 16 L.Ed.2d 622 (1966); cf. In re Whitmore, 9 Utah 441, 35 P. 524, 526-29 (1894) (discussing the differences between criminal and civil contempt). It is important to note that it is the purpose, not the method of the punishment, that serves to distinguish the two types of proceedings. Both fines and imprisonment may be used to coerce a party or remedy a failure to perform as well as to vindicate a court's authority. See Bradshaw, 627 P.2d at 530; Utah Code Ann. §§ 78-32-10 to -12 (1987). One distinguishing factor is whether the fine or sentence is conditional. A remedial purpose is indicated when the contemner is allowed to purge him-or herself of the contempt by complying with the court's orders. Maggio v. Zeitz, 333 U.S. 56, 68, 68 S.Ct. 401, 407, 92 L.Ed. 476 (1948); see Utah Code Ann. § 78-32-12 (1987) (allowing conditional imprisonment). Id. at 1168. (Emphasis added.)

This distinction was also discussed and acknowledged by this Court in Boggs v. Boggs, 824 P.2d 478, 481 (Utah App. 1991), when Judge Jackson analyzed the nature of a contempt citation that had been made against a husband in a divorce proceeding.

Husband's imprisonment was unconditional. He was not permitted any opportunity to remedy or purge himself of the alleged contempt. Thus, the principal purpose of the judgment was to punish rather than obtain compliance with prior orders. Accordingly, the judgment was criminal in nature and appealable. Id. at 1168; Thomas v. Thomas, 569 P.2d 1119, 1121 (Utah 1977.) Id.

Both the January and June Orders were remedial in nature because they provided Dr. Osguthorpe with a way of avoiding the jail sentence and contempt citation by simply making the child support payments required by the Court. In fact, the January 24th Order, the only Order which should be analyzed in connection with the contempt issue, specifically states:

(g) Defendant may purge himself of his contempt as has been found by the Court by paying the amounts required in a Paragraph's (e) and (f) above. (R-553.)

Clearly, the contempt citation before the court falls within the civil contempt definition established in Von Hake, and Boggs supra. Dr. Osguthorpe's argument that this is a criminal contempt citation is without merit.

Secondly, the adequacy and propriety January 24, 1992, Findings and Order, are not subject to challenge because no appeal has ever been taken from the same. Based upon that fact alone, no consideration should be given to any of Dr. Osguthorpe's argument attempting to challenge the contempt finding. [See Boggs at 481 and Utah R.App. p.3(a).]

Turning now to the second question raised by Dr. Osguthorpe regarding the adequacy of procedural due process, that argument must likewise fail based upon the Utah Supreme Court decision of Burgers v. Maiben, 652 P.2d 1320 (Utah 1982) which was relied on and cited with approval in the Von Hake and Boggs cases supra. In Burgers, the Defendant violated a permanent injunction and consequently, the trial court found him in contempt based upon the evidence and his own admissions and sentenced him to serve 30 days in jail. On appeal, the Defendant claimed, among other things, that he was imprisoned without due process of law. In addressing and ultimately rejecting that claim, the Court stated:

The defendant claims that he was denied due process in the order to show cause hearing held June 30, 1991. Both this Court and the United States Supreme Court have held that an individual's constitutional rights must be

protected during a contempt of court action. Thus, in a prosecution for contempt, not committed in the presence of the court, due process requires that the person charged be advised of the nature of the action against him, have assistance of counsel, if requested, have the right to confront witnesses, and have the right to offer testimony on his behalf. See, In re Oliver. 333 U.S. 257, 68 S.Ct. 499, 92 L.Ed. 682 (1948); Cooke v. United States, 267 U.S. 517, 45 S.Ct. 390, 69 L.Ed. 767 (1925); Powers v. Taylor, 14 Utah 2d 118, 378 P.2d 519 (1963); Robinson v. City Court of Ogden, supra.

In the present case, the defendant was given notice of the contempt charge against him when he was served with a copy of the order to show cause. The defendant appeared as his own counsel and offered testimony on his behalf. From an examination of the trial court transcript, it is clear that the trial court never denied the defendant the opportunity to confront adverse witnesses or call witnesses on his own behalf. On the contrary, the defendant himself never requested to confront or call a witness. Id. at 1322. (Emphasis added.)

In the present case, Dr. Osguthorpe received proper notice of the hearing and the fact that Mrs. Osguthorpe was requesting imposition of a jail sentence. He appeared. Almost a full day of evidence was presented. He never requested counsel. He made opening and closing statements. He testified. He called his own witnesses. He submitted documentary evidence which was received. He cross-examined Mrs. Osguthorpe and her counsel. He submitted pleadings, objections and motions in connection with the hearing. Based upon the foregoing, and the guidelines provided in Burgers and Boggs, supra., Dr. Osguthorpe's claim that he was denied due process must likewise fail.

It is respectfully requested that this court affirm the trial court's decision in relation to the contempt issue in all respects.

POINT III

DR. OSGUTHORPE'S CLAIM THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN AWARDING MRS. OSGUTHORPE CERTAIN ATTORNEY'S FEES RELATED TO THE UTAH SUPREME COURT EXTRAORDINARY WRIT ACTION AND THE FEDERAL HABEAS CORPUS ACTION IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THIS COURT AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED.

In Point VI of Dr. Osguthorpe's Brief, he argues that the trial court erred in awarding Mrs. Osguthorpe the attorney's fees and costs she incurred in connection with the Petition for Extraordinary Writ filed by Dr. Osguthorpe in the Utah Supreme Court and the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed by Dr. Osguthorpe in the United States District Court, both of which were determined to be without merit and denied.

Dr. Osguthorpe's claim that the trial court erred in awarding Mrs. Osguthorpe certain attorney's fees should be summarily denied, since it is not properly before this Court in connection with this Appeal. Dr. Osguthorpe filed his Notice of Appeal in this matter on June 24, 1992. (R-632.) (See Addendum.) The trial court's Order awarding Mrs. Osguthorpe those fees was signed and entered by Judge Wilkinson on December 3, 1992. (See Addendum.) No Notice of Appeal has been filed in connection with that Order.

Rules 3(a) and 4(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure provide the following deadline in which to appeal a trial court's order:

RULE 3. Appeal as of right: how taken.

(1) **Filing appeal from final orders and judgments.** An appeal may be taken from a district, juvenile, or circuit court to the appellate court with jurisdiction over the appeal from all final orders and judgments, except as otherwise provided by law, by filing a notice of appeal with the clerk of the trial court within the time allowed by Rule 4. Failure of an appellant to take any step other than the timely filing of a notice of appeal does not affect the validity of the appeal, but is ground only for such action as the appellate court deems appropriate, which may include dismissal of the appeal or other sanctions short of dismissal, as well as the award of attorney fees.

RULE 4. Appeal as of right: when taken.

(1) **Appeal from final judgment and order.** In a case in which an appeal is permitted as a matter of right from the trial court to the appellate court, the notice of appeal required by Rule 3 shall be filed with the clerk of the trial court within 30 days after the date of entry of the judgment or order appealed from . . .

The 30 day time period has passed and consequently this Court lacks jurisdiction to consider this claim of error. (See, Yost v. State, 640 P.2d 1044 (Utah 1981), Burgers v. Maiben, 652 P.2d 1320 (Utah 1982).)

Additionally, what appears to be an attempt by Dr. Osguthorpe to argue an issue that clearly is not properly before this Court, should be considered in connection with Mrs. Osguthorpe's request for an award of her attorney's fees and costs incurred by her in relation to this appeal. (See POINT IV below.)

POINT IV

MRS. OSGUTHORPE SHOULD BE AWARDED ALL OF HER
ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS INCURRED IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPEAL

Section 30-3-3 Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) is the statutory basis for an award of attorney's fees in divorce actions. It states that:

The Court may order either party to pay to the clerk a sum of money . . . to enable such party to prosecute or defend the action.

Id. (Emphasis added.)

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